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Dear Ferdinand: 

THE WHITE HOL'SE 

W.\ SH11'GTO~ 

-

October 20, 1988 

I have read with great care the letter you 
sent to me today. I must tell you that I have 
been kept fully informed of the proceedings in 
this case. 

I understand fully your belief that you and 
Mrs. Marcos are not guilty of any wrongdoing. As 
you well know under our system, you have the right 
to have such charges resolved before a court of 
law with the benefit of the presumption of innocence. 

In an attempt to see if this matter could be 
resolved without such proceedings, it was with my 
full knowledge and concurrence that Mr. Guiliani 
and representatives of the Justice Department 
provided you with an opportunity to enter a plea 
upon the terms outlined to your counsel. This was 
an extraordinary procedure to see if we could 
resolve this matter in a way that you would find 
acceptable. Your lawyers have advised us that 
this is not acceptable and for this I am sorry. 

You are quite right that the President of the 
United States does retain the ultimate executive 
authority, but as I mentioned above, the facts and 
circwnstances in this case left me no choice 
except to defer to the Attorney General. 

I regret very much that this has become 
necessary but under our system you will have every 
opportunity to refute these charges. 

Nancy joins me in extending to you and Imelda 
our best wishes. 

His Excellency 
Ferdinand Marcos 
Honolulu, Hawaii 

Sincerely, 
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<TEXT>U A AM-MARCOS lSTLD-WRITETHRU 10-19 0782 
URGENT@ 
(COMPLETE WRITETHRU _ DETAILS FROM RULING; REACT)@ 
@BY WILLIAM M. REILLY@= 

NEW YORK (UPI)_ A FEDERAL APPEALS COURT WEDNESDAY UPHELD A CIVIL 
CONTEMPT RULING AGAINST FORMER PHILIPPINE PRESIDENT FERDINAND MARCOS AND 
HIS WIFE, IMELDA, FOR FAILING TO COMPLY WITH A FEDERAL GRAND JURY 
SUBPOENA, PAVING THE WAY FOR THEIR ARREST. 

RELEASE OF THE RULING BY THE 2ND U.S. CIRCUIT COURT OF APPEALS 
MARKED THE FIRST PUBLIC DISCLOSURE OF SUCH GRAND JURY PROCEEDINGS OR 
CONTEMPT CITATIONS. THE GRAND JURY IS INVESTIGATING WHETHER THE MARCOSES 
DIVERTED MONEY BELONGING TO THE PHILIPPINE AND U.S. GOVERNMENTS TO 
THEMSELVES, THE COURT SAID. 

THE MARCOSES, LIVING IN EXILE IN HAWAII, WERE FOUND IN CIVIL 
CONTEMPT BY U.S. DISTRICT JUDGE JOHN WALKER FOR FAILING TO COMPLY WITH 
GRAND JURY SUBPOENAS TO PRODUCE FINGER AND PALM PRINTS AND EXAMPLES OF 
THEIR HANDWRITING AND VOICES. 

THE COURT ALSO CITED THEM FOR FAILING TO SIGN' 'CONSENT DIRECTIVES 
THAT AUTHORIZE FOREIGN BANKS TO TURN OVER TO THE GRAND JURY THEIR 
FINANCIAL RECORDS.'' 

THE AUG. 11 WALKER ORDER NAMED ''MR. AND MRS. DOE,' 1 INDICATING THE 
ACTION WAS SEALED. HOWEVER, THE RULING BY THE FEDERAL APPEALS COURT 
NAMED THE MARCOSES. 

WHEN THE MARCOSES FAILED TO APPEAR BEFORE THE JUDGE FOR IMPOSITION 
OF THE SANCTIONS AUG. 18, ''A BENCH WARRANT WAS ISSUED FOR THEIR 
ARREST, 11 THE APPEALS COURT DECISION SAID. 

BUT WALKER'S IMPOSITION OF SANCTIONS WERE STAYED WHILE THE HIGHER 
COURT TOOK UP THE CASE. THAT STAY WAS LIFTED BY THE APPEALS COURT, 
ALLOWING FOR ARRESTS. IT WAS NOT KNOWN IF THERE WERE PLANS TO SERVE THE 
BENCH WARRANTS. 

' 'ESSENTIALLY, THE GOVERNMENT BELIEVES (THE MARCOSES) FRAUDULENTLY 
DIVERTED ENORMOUS SUMS OF MONEY THAT BELONGED TO THE PHILIPPINE 
GOVERNMENT AND THE GOVERNMENT OF THE UNITED STATES,' 1 A THREE-JUDGE 
PANEL OF THE APPEALS COURT SAID IN ITS 21-PAGE DECISION. 

''A.~ONG THE ALLEGED MEANS EMPLOYED WERE EMBEZZLEMENT OF FUNDS IN 
BOTH COUNTRIES, A PORTION OF WHICH WERE THEN USED TO PURCHASE PERSONAL 
AND REAL PROPERTY IN THE U.S., AND THE REMAINDER OF WHICH WERE 
TRANSFERRED TO SECRET SWISS BANK ACCOUNTS FOR THE MAROSES' BENEFIT. 11 

THE COURT SAID NO INDICTMENTS HAD BEEN HANDED DOWN BY THE GRAND 
JURY. HOWEVER, RECENT REPORTS HAVE SAID EITHER A SEALED INDICTMENT WAS 
DELIVERED OR INDICTMENTS WERE EXPECTED. IT HAS ALSO BEEN REPORTED THAT 
THERE IS A DISPUTE WITHIN THE REAGAN ADMINISTRATION OVER WHETHER TO 
I NDIC THE MARCOSES. 

THE OFFICE OF U.S. ATTORNEY RUDOLPH GIULIANI HAD NO COMMENT ON THE 
REPORTS. JUSTICE DEPARTMENT SPOKESMEN IN WASHINGTON ALSO WERE 
UNAVAILABLE FOR COMMENT. 

IN HONOLULU , MARCOS SPOKESMAN GEMMO TRINIDAD SAID HE HAD NO 
INFORMATION ABOUT THE RULING AND COULD NOT COMMENT. 

THE FBI SPECIAL AGENT IN CHARGE IN HONOLULU, EUGENE GLENN, SAID HIS 
OFFICE NORMALLY WOULD HANDLE AN ARREST BUT THAT BECAUSE OF THE 
1 'UNPRECEDENTED' 1 NATURE OF THE CASE ANY DECISION ON WHAT TO DO WOULD BE 
MADE IN WASHINGTON. 

THE APPEALS COURT SAID THE MARCOSES ARGUED AGAINST COMPLYING WITH 
THE REQUEST ON THE GROUNDS THEY RETAINED HEAD-OF-STATE IMMUNITY, THEY 
WERE' 'AFFORDED A PRIVILEGE UNDER THE PHILIPPINE CONSTITUTION AGAINST 
SELF-INCRIMINATION'' BEFORE THE U.S. GRAND JURY AND THE GRAND JURY 
''LACKED THE AUTHORITY TO OBTAIN EVIDENCE THROUGH THE USE OF COMPELLED 



t0NSENT DIRECTIVES.'' 
THE INVESTIGATION, WHICH BEGAN IN JUNE 1986, WAS LED BY GIULIANI'S 

OFFICE BECAUSE OF ALLEGATIONS THE MARCOSES HAD VIOLATED THE RACKETEER 
INFLUENCED AND CORRUPT ORGANIZATIONS ACT. THE INVESTIGATION REPORTEDLY 
FOCUSED ON THE COUPLE'S PROPERTY IN NEW YORK CITY. 

MARCOS, 71, RULED THE PHILIPPINES FROM 1966 UNTIL 1986. IN FEBRUARY 
1986, THE MARCOSES WERE EVACUATED FROM THE PRESIDENTIAL PALACE IN MANILA 
BY U.S. AIR FORCE HELICOPTERS. FERDINAND MARCOS WAS REPLACED BY CORAZON 
AQUINO, WHOSE SLAIN HUSBAND WAS A LEADING MARCOS OPPONENT. 

THE APPEALS COURT SAID WHEN THE MARCOSES LEFT THE PRESIDENTIAL 
PALACE, THEY TOOK' 'THEIR PERSONAL PAPERS, PHILIPPINE CURRENCY AND 
JEWELRY. 

''EVENTUALLY, THEY WERE TRANSPORTED BY U.S. MILITARY AIRCRAFT TO 
THE STATE OF HAWAII, WHERE THEIR PERSONAL EFFECTS WERE SEIZED BY U.S. 
CUSTOMS OFFICERS,'' THE COURT PAPERS SAID. 

THE APPEALS COURT NOTED THE FIRST TIME THE MARCOSES 1 'ASSERTED 
HEAD-OF-STATE IMMUNITY AS A REASON TO RESIST THE SUBPOENAS'' WAS ON AUG. 
4. 

UPI 10-19-88 07:23 PED 
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M E M O R A N D U M 

21 October 1988 

TO: General Powell 

FROM: SDO, Situation Room 

RE: Marcos' Response to President Reagan's letter 

Sir, 

CINCPAC informed Situation Room at 0328 this morning that 
Maj. Bradford, accompanied by two INS agents, successfully 
delivered President Reagan's letter to Ferdinand Marcos in 
Hawaii. Maj. Bradford was subsequently provided a ninety-four 
page response for delivery to President Reagan (enclosed). 

INS Public Affairs also requested approval for press guidance 
to respond to media inquiries. Doug Paal provided guidance that 
INS may say Major Bradford delivered a message from Washington to 
Mr. Marcos. If asked, INS may clarify that the document 
delivered was not a subpoena. In addition, INS should offer no 
further comments nor referrals for inquiries. (The original 
press guidance suggested by INS is also enclosed.) 

CC: J.Kelly 
D.Paal 
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T HE WH ITE HOUSE 

WASH I NGTON 

October 21, 1988 

MEMO FOR RECORDS 

Ple a se do not ,Prov ide access 
to enclosed without prior 
a roval from Rhett Dawson 
or Katherine La dd . 

-



Dear Ferdinand: 

C. F. 

THE WHITE HO U SE 

WASHIN GTON 

October 20, 1988 

I have read with great care the letter you 
sent to me today. I must tell you that I have 
been kept fully informed of the proceedings in 
this case. 

I understand fully your belief that you and 
Mrs. Marcos are not guilty of any wrongdoing. As 
you well know under our system, you have the right 
to have such charges resolved before a court of 
law with the benefit of the presumption of innocence. 

In an attempt to see if this matter could be 
resolved without such proceedings, it was with my 
full knowledge and concurrence that Mr. Guiliani 
and representatives of the Justice Department 
provided you with an opportunity to enter a plea 
upon the terms outlined to your counsel. This was 
an extraordinary procedure to see if we could 
resolve this matter in a way that you would find 
acceptable. Your lawyers have advised us that 
this is not acceptable and for this I am sorry. 

You are quite right that the President of the 
United States does retain the ultimate executive 
authority, but as I mentioned above, the facts and 
circumstances in this case left me no choice 
except to defer to the Attorney General. 

I regret very much that this has become 
necessary but under our system you will have every 
opportunity to refute these charges. 

Nancy joins me in extending to you and Imelda 
our best wishes. 

His Excellency 
Ferdinand Marcos 
Honolulu, Hawaii 

Sincerely, 



,_:::... 

THE WHITE HOUSE 

WASHINGTON 

October 20, 1988 

MEMORANDUM FOR THE RECORD 

The attached letter was penned at the 
request of the Chief of Staff. 

The text of the letter was approved 
p rior to that by the President in the 
p resence of the Chief of Staff, 
Na t i onal Security Advisor, Counsel 
to the President, and the Attorney 
Gene ral . The approval included 
the hand- wr itte n changes on the 
attached d r aft . 
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De a r Ferdina nd : 

KD, CL~ It-Be> t -1 vJ, nv\)ss . 
<g_Q_ A-f'Pflov<,t.. 

I have read with great care the letter you sent to me today. 

I s t tell you that I have been kept fully informed of the 

proceedings in this case. 

I understand fully your belief that you and Mrs. Marcos are 

.o t gui lty of any wrongdoing. As you well kno~under our system, 

o ha v e the right to have such charges resolved before a court 

o = a w with the benefit of the presumption of innocence. 

In an attempt to see if this matter could be resolved 

without such proceedings, it was with my full knowledge and 

concurrence that Mr. Guiliani and representatives of the Justice 

Department provided you with an opportunity to enter a plea upon 

the terms outlined to your counsel. This was an extraordinary 

p r ocedure to see if we could resolved this matter in a way that 

you would find acceptable. Your lawyers have advised us that 

this i s not acceptable and for this I am sorry . 

You are quite right that the President of the United States 

doe s retain the ultimate executive authority , but as I men tioned \ 
.hl:r~~ t..J.-~ 

above, the facts circumstances in this case -,~siled bl€! 

~ dcc>ton L the Attorney General. Q___ 
(~ 
~ 



I regret very much that this has become necessary but under 

our s ystem you will have every opportunity to refute these 

charges. 

ancy joins me in extending to you and Imelda are best 

wises . 



The President 
The White House 
Washington, D.C. 20500 

Dear Mr. President: 

October 20, 1988 

\SUB 0C1 20 f',I S: 42 

I have no other recourse except to write you this letter. 

My lawyers inform me that in a meeting yesterday called by 
the .s. Department of Justice, U.S. Attorney Rudolf Guiliani, 
c l a ' · g to be with the full knowledge and approval of the 
President of the United States, directed our lawyers that Mrs. 
areas and I should plead guilty to a RICO substantive count by 

5 : 00 p .. , Thursday, October 20, 1988 (which is today). 

He said that this was not a negotiating proposal but was a 
l ast offer and not subject to negotiation. It was an 
ultimatum, not a proposal. 

Mrs. Marcos and I plead that the President of the United 
States as a basic policy should retain the right to finally 
decide to indict or not to indict a former or present foreign 
h ead of state. This present confusion weakens the U.S. 
presidency. 

We also plead that negotiations be allowed where we may 
show that there has been no stealing of public or private funds 
-- at least not by Mrs. Marcos and me. 

Although we are ready to die for our principles, and we 
p robably will, Imelda and I will ever be grateful to you. 

I elda sends her prayers to you and Nancy. 

I remain your obedient servant. 

(S) FERDINAND EDRALIN MARCOS 

Dictated by Ferdinand Marcos to Janene Assuras, Secretary to 
Paul Laxalt 



THE WHITE HOUSE 

WASHINGTON 

TO FILES: 

Attached is the original 
Presidential letter to 
Ferdinand Marcos. A telex 
was sent by Counsel to 
Marcos, so Counsel and NSC 
agree that this original 
should not be sent, but 
retained in files. As 
with the rest of the file, 
Rhett Dawson should be 
consulted before anyone is 
given access to this file. 
Thanks. 

Katherine Ladd 



Dear Ferdinand: 

THE WHITE HOUSE 

WAS HINGTON 

October 20, 1988 

I have read with great care the letter you 
sent to me today. I must tell you that I have 
been kept fully informed of the proceedings in 
this case. 

I understand fully your belief that you and 
Mrs. Marcos are not guilty of any wrongdoing. As 
you well know under our system, you have the right 
to have such charges resolved before a court of 
law with the benefit of the presumption of innocence. 

In an attempt to see if this matter could be 
resolved without such proceedings, it was with my 
full knowledge and concurrence that Mr. Guiliani 
and representatives of the Justice Department 
provided you with an opportunity to enter a plea 
upon the terms outlined to your counsel. This was 
an extraordinary procedure to see if we could 
resolve this matter in a way that you would find 
acceptable. Your lawyers have advised us that 
this is not acceptable and for this I am sorry. 

You are quite right that the President of the 
United States does retain the ultimate executive 
authority, but as I mentioned above, the facts and 
circumstances in this case left me no choice 
except to defer to the Attorney General. 

I regret very much that this has become 
necessary but under our system you will have every 
opportunity to refute these charges. 

ancy joins me in extending to you and Imelda 
our best wishes. 

His Excellency 
Ferdinand Marcos 
Honolulu, Hawaii 

Sincerely, 
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UNCLASSIFIED TELEFAX 
COMMANDER IN CHIEF, U.S. PACIFIC COMMAND 

(USCINCPAC) 

CAMP H.M. SMITH. HAWAII 96861-5025 

Telecopier: ( 808 ) 477 - 62~7 ~utoma tic 
Voice: (808)477-6480 

Location: Room 212, Wing 2c (2nd f loo r) 
Bldg #1 

Da e: M ocr Subject: 

To: 

p ier : 1,.,1/f I T'E. fft>USE. 
2-0'l... 3 ~-- .S-2-2. 

ame: 6&/A- MIH?IE. -bAVIS 
0 ganizat ion : Wf/1 TE !MVSE 

5 / 7V. 

ame: /1// J ,BM-!)Fo/2..h 

Number of P 
Transm itted : 
I Excluding this co 

Office Symbol : 

Phone Number: 

Office Symbol: 

.5£-N · I.Jv,Y Ol=ct._ 

:11~- <::,st3 

FP!t 
From: 

Organ,za io t I N c_ p /fr!._ Phone Number: (8"08') 47 7-/p~o& L 

Remarks: 

~e J ed ia ar e s urr :di ng th~ arcos residence i n great numo€rs. Ma j 3 r adfo rd arrived 

i n :-iii o r ., ,1.:. he d got nis ame as well as seeing h is CINCPAC badg <? , so they ~-.c1.:-w 

l _.? 's fr o ::ere. ··e na e two □edia quer i es at ti i s time, a nd mo re will be :: orthcoming 

;i ;; it is s ti · -~a.r_ ·· : ere . \.: propo se the Coll.owi ng statem..:n t fo r use irr1ned ia te:. \' i :1 

r espo:i.se t ~•Jer :,, . "~~a j · avid Bradfo r d, Ass islan t Fo r e i gn Pol i cy Advis o r to t he 

C0:'Xna ndcr i:i. Ch i1::f • Pac.Hie, was asked by another federal age ncy t') de liver a doc ut:ien t 

t o ~1r ~tar~ $ . He delivered t he document lat e h is afte rnoon . We. are no t at l i ber t y 

to c:0mme nt f urther . " 

It i s i , .portant to i nclude t he " by another federal agency" s tatement, o r T,; e. cou ld 

be inunda ted ·..tith quest i ons implying i t was a CI NC: PAC documen t. 

Al so ne ed to ~~ow co whom you want u~ t o refer que rie s f rom ~edia who wa nt t o know 

who t o call afier they ge t ou r a pproved s tat~men t. 

Reque s t your r eply urgen t ly, Si gned, Th eodore R He i l, Colone l US AF 
Public Affairs Of ficer, USCI~CPAC 

UNCLASSIFIED TELEFAX 



Ff.ROI:\.-\ 

J''.1 ~ ? : ~-_; . \,, ll..,:~I ~ 

·=·1~1.; :·.:--:t LC :i c,u~:e 
1.-:ash_: g-::.on, D. C . 

D E. l'vl .\ R C (_) ':i 

Thank you for ; o ur l e tter of c~ober 20. I am sadl y 
disappointed with stace~encs contained in it. Your 
comments reflect a lack of knowledge of what has ~Gally 
been happening to n e. 

I was brought to tl.e Lh ited States on your orciers. I 
respectfully refer you ~o page s 5-10 of my book, A 
Trilogy on the Transfor~ation of Philippine society, a 
copy of which is enclosed herewith as Annex 1, wit~ 
supporting docume1tat:on as A~nex 2. As a consequence, 
rny fate is entirely in ;our tands. There~ore, you stould 
know these facts. 

The procedure by which the s~ice Depart ent conveyed 
its proposal was 8XLraordinary not because it took place 
but because: 
, ':'he ~noposal •vas , n-r.egotiable; 
2 . It req lred .. e to plead gui ~ to a felon y; 
3. I ?rovided that I ~ust testify against others, po ssibl y 

i~c:uding my own fa ily; and 
4 . T:.e proposa l covered on y my problems i1 JGw York and 

specifically left open other investigations in the 
Uni ted States a nd the Philippines, 

~his proposal off~red no peace for me and ~y fa ily; it 
o::fered not:hing. 

~-ur letter puts great weight on my opportunity to refute 
charges that will be ade against me in a trial. The 
reality is that_ am simply physically unable to withstand 
the rigors of a trial of this magnitude. It will likely 
mean my death. 

·i 1derstanding this, I have chosen the course of defending 
myself rather than to plead guilty to being a racketeer. 

Mr. President, as my lawyers conveyed to Mr. Giuliani, I 
re~ain willing to n8gotiate a reasonable settlement~~ 
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FERDINAND E. i\--J .-\ R C l > S 

Jll. .:. :r· . ..:..1..::.µt.:.:..1,;.:: · • .-i. L1 :;,~· aJvP.csa.ri8~, ·.•,i\et.i:Pr- i r-i ':-' , '7 

?hi · ?P ~~5 or tte ~nited States. 

I 1 r g e :ou to reexa~ine your decision to defer to ~he 
~ttcrney-General because it is to you that I have al~ays 
-~oked ~ r a solu tion to these problems, not only ~or 
~e for y country. And certainly, you must realize 
~.ac a cri~i.a ?rosecution of Imelda and me in the J~ited 
s~a es a, ot accomplish this. 

: a: .. a;; i g t;a~ you give me the opportunity 1;0 persuade 
yo·, c hr ·g: my actions in pursuing settlement, why we 
- -.:.. ace·· · s ho ld not be indicted. 

7 ,:s ~e-ter is a plea to you for the chance to create a 
·urtty o~ our countries and one which would be 
c r.s~ erate of Imelda's and my plight. 

;'::.a .. e· er ~he :-esults of my plea to you, I will always be 
~:e ~i=st ~o rise to salute you ~or the legacy of universal 
~eace : a o r administration will leave to the world. 

~e ~ray~ r a ncy and you, and for our countries. 

re ua n 
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EVE~TS OF FEllRlJARY 1986 

On r-e ruary "-6, 19 _ 6_ the Phi iippine political ~nvi ronment changed 
drasti 'all . and radic:dly. 11,e cause was aptly described by Donald 
R-g:m. \ '11i e Hous~ Chier' of Staff. on page 29.:1. of his book For the 
Record a d I uo e: ·'111 - State Departme11t w::1s happy over the fall 
or' Fer "11 2. d \1arcos which was in contravention of U.S. policy and 
t:s e resident 's 1shes.' ' 

The Cable from C.S. Department uf State 

.-\ftcr the election of February 7, 1986. I vas practically ordered 
and directed by :i telex quoting a cable of he U.S. State Department. 
telling me to give up the presidency. TI1e special envoy whom I had 
earlier dispatched to the United States sent me a cable that totally 
ignored the Filipino peoplt:!'s verdict - that I :van the presidential 
election - as supported by the official proclamation of the Batasan 
Pambansa or the Philippine National Parliament - the only body 
mandated by the Philippine constitution to c:.tnvass the returns of the 
election for President and Vice-President and to proclaim the winners. 

The message from my envoy Labor Minister Blas Opie which was 
transmitted on February 24, 1986 read in part: 

"In this regard, He (Secretary George Shultz) is genu­
inely concerned that you understand \Ve a.re ready to 
facilitate THE SAFE and MEDICAL CARE of you, your 
immediate family and close associates in the United States." 
He said the President, by stepping a:-;ide and preparing a 
transition government, will save the country from being 
split asunder :md probnbly from a bloody civil war which 
tht:- communists will ruthlessly exploit. .. 
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.. ... Then 1 asked \\•hether the Lrans1tion go,·cmmenc 

-: onteniplat~J hy tli~ Pre~ident meant that a government 
headed by Corazon Aquino and Salvador Laurel would 
replace the government of \ ,1arcos and Tolentino and he said 
the UNITED STATES WOLl..D LIKE TO SEE THE FOR­
\Q.l..A DEVELOPED BY TJlE ffiIPl ·o LEADERS 
THEMSELVES ... ·• 

Senator Paul Lax.alt in his article ''My Conversation with Ferdi­
nand Marcos·· published in the Summer l 986 issue of the quarterly 
magazine Pol.icy Review wrote: "On February 24, President Marcos 
phoned me at the Capitol, where I was being briefed by Secretary of 
State George Shultz and Philip Habib. the Pre::;idcm's special emis­
sary, about the latest events in the Philippines. President Marcos asked 
me whether the message he had received from the \Vhite House 
calling for a 'peaceful transition' to a new government was genuinely 
from President Reagan. I told him it was, but I could not answer all his 
questions about what a 'peaceful transition' would mean - whether, 
for example, it might permit some form of power sharing wich Mrs. 
Aquino." 

I tried calling President Reagan by phone but for some unex­
plained reason, I could not reach him. 

l called Ambassador Stephen Bosworth about the message from 
Secretary Shultz calling for an interim government and for the 
f-ilipinos to decide their future. He answered chat it was too late. I told 
him that I would rather die in the Palace and he coldly answered that 
this \.VOuld be tragic. He told me that thousands of troops ,·ere 
marching on to the Palace and that they had surrounded it. I sent my 
son and an aide to the perimeter defense of the Malac::mang to 
investigate . They rcrumed to say that the report was uncme. 
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.\lessage from U.S. Embassy 

l · Jd cJ.r ·1er received from the VS. Embassy, through ~Ir. Calixto 
Femandez of the Presidential Press Staff. a message which threater:ed 
~o field the U.S. :--.Iannes against us '" should massive violence con-
mue." ,\!legations were made by t.he U.S. Embassy of massive 

,·10 l~nce being cornmined by my troops. On the contrary, my troops 
: uffered c3.sualties because of my order for them not to retaliate. Jn 
a sworn statement of one of the many vimesses, Mr. Albert Irving 
Romero. a retired U.S. Navy officer. said, "I was at Nagtahan Bridge 
on the night of February 24 and 25, 1986. I saw loyalist soldiers, most 
oft.hem wounded and some of them seemingly dead. being brought by 
their comrades to Malacanang Clinic ror treatment. I was there 
together with some of my neighbors from Quezon City. \Ve were -
eager to help defend Malacanang from the ic ious and violent actions 
of the pro-Aquino forces. But we were restrained by an order from 
President Marcos 'not to retaliate'.'' 

Senator Laxalt also wrote that I was terrified by reportS that U.S. 
Marines were on their way to join the rebels. He further wrote that he 
checked the reports with the President and Secretary Weinberger and 
found out they were absolutely untrue. However. I know for a fact that 
U.S. Marines had landed in the Palace grounds. Even members of my 
Presidential Security Command manning the Philippine Navy boats 
and the presidential yacht "Ang Pangulo ''. moored at Manila Bay, 
were disarmed by the-U.S. Marines. I was also informed by another 
American source that U.S. Marines and even U.S. naval gun boats 
would be fielded against me. 

I was not terrified by reports that U.S. Marines were on their way 
to join the rebels. I was just alarmed by the prospects of an armed 
confrontation with the elements of the U.S. Armed Forces which 
could lead into a bloody civil war wherein the Filipino people would 
end up the loser. Fu11hermore, I had no wish to fight American troops. 
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f don· : want :o righ t comrades-in-arms . I prefer to fight \virh them just 
~~ '.\I~ I l Jve onorably done during the Second World \.Var. 

Air .-\ttack on .\lalac::mang Palace 

our ·s . Phili ine Air Force helicopters had armed ctnd 
< t C ark , ir 1-nrce Base and t11en altacked the Palace -.vith 

i\'cs of my family and staff, including my 
om was barely nine months old. Mr. Bryan 

auack on Lhe Palace in his book "The Four Days 
~e.. - ·oi o s: ' The rebels intentionally sent Captain 

E ·an_e i rn overthePalace ... E angelistaswungtheSikorsky 
I 8 . . e own among the buildings surrounding 

se · .e . lanila Post Office as a screen to sneak up on 
o ed o come out of nowhere as he 
e Pal ce ... E an elista squeezed the trigger 

ro gh the air before kicking up fire 
a . One l a hole in tl e metallic blue 

oi. arcos ' son-in-law Greggy Araneta. 
e Frst Lad 's edroom. A third did slight 

damage o re-i ential helicopter sitting on the 
) \),'fl. ' ' 

TI ere ere ~tu l y ore an hree rockets (which according to 
our .-\ir Fore.! o Ticer who in pee e the fragments of the roe. ets were 

ot found in the inven o of he Philippine rmed Forces) fired 
against us. 1l1is was co inned by Col. Antonio Sotelo when he said 
in conversation with Br an Johnson, "we sent one helicopter, 01 e pass 
and he fired six rockets .. \cLUally, he (Evangelista the pilot) was only 
5upposed to fire four. but the trigger is very delicate and the pilot held 
it lOO long.'' 

·'I want them gassed up now! And 1 want fuel for my <.:hoppers. 

wo." was the demand of Col. Antonio Sotelo to the Clark Air Force 



Base 1u oriues according to Cecille T. .-\rillo in his book "Breaka­
way .. .:i ·i.·as 'Olla.borated by Bryan Johnson in his book .. •n1e Four 
Da.vs of C .1ura!!e". Brvan Johnson furtber wrote that ''Clark's U.S. , - ., 
Gfficer r'sponded to this demand in the time-honored manner: they 

ed lt:c ,, hole thing in Washington's lap ... Finally, just before 4 
a.m.. e Pe agon ·s bureaucrats handed down their decisive ruling : 
Yes .. .. - alor g Juan Ponce Enrile as well as Jaime Cardinal Sin were 

olh to the base and Ambassador Bosworth. 

Was I Kidnapped? 

e P iii pine Observer and otl1er major Philippine newspapers 
re one that ~ladame Aquino, on February 21, 1988. in her weekly 
ra io 1 show ·'Magtanong sa Pangulo", said "the role of the U.S. 
E a sy d ring Marcos' final hours as president was 'making ar­
range e ts' for Y!arcos to leave the country." Madame Aquino, 

•rther said, "U.S. Ambassador Stephen Bosworth called me. He said 
a e . ar-oses would be leaving and they would be flown to Clark. 
· en ey reached Clark. Ambassador Bosworth called me and said . 

.v i e ossible for the Marcoses to stay overnight in Clark. So I 
: . ·she in a very weak condition? Bosworth said, maybe he needs 
rest. And he is asking if he can tly to !locos orte. And l said, why, 

is it· cause he is in danger of dying? And Bosworth said, no, but he 
·ou just like to rest there. I said, no, he can rest in Clark, but he has 

to lea ·e 'irst thin~ in lhe mom in~. And so th;u as the agrr.r:mr.nr ;mrl 
·va · vhy ~1arcos and his family t1ew the next day to Honolulu. ·· 

• e com. lete transcript of lhe February 21, 1988 "Magtanong sa 
P n~ o·• program is on ppendix B . 

.. Right up until the last minute they were seeking to at least be 
a!lowe to remain in the Philippines. perhaps in Marcos home 
provi1 cc''. rote the presidential spokesman Mr. Larry Speakes in his 
book "Speaking Out". It was my desire to remain in the Philippines. 
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E \·:;:n tdore ·.,., e ldt \ lalJcJ.nang, 1t was a solemn agreement that I 
1.voulJ be flown to Ilocos Norte. my home province. from Clark Air 
Fc rce Base. \vl1en we \vere at Clark Air Force Base. our agreement 
that \Ve \v11l be brought to Ilocos Norte the next morning '.vas 

rc:terated. But to our sur~rise at about 3 a.m., we were awakened by 
Gen. Ted .-\]kn, Chief of the U. S. Joint Military Assistance Group 
r JUSMAG) and told that we\ ill be 11own to Guam. 

The late Teodoro 'alencia, in his column in the Manila Bulletin 
quoted Gen. Allen as saying. "'Mr . . tarcos refused to be taken out of 
the Philippines. He insisted. a · originally agreed, to be brought to 
Laoag. But I told him that I have orders from higher authorities to fly 
him out of the Philippines. And I am going to do it even if it needs to 
take him bodily to the plane." Tne report was never denied. Gen. Ted 
Allen confirmed it in a speech made in emphis, Tennessee. 

I\1y unheeded rerusa o lea e the Philippines was further ex­
pressed by Senator Laxalt: .. It is important to understand, too, rhaL he 
didn 't believe e was going to have to leave the Philippines ... He 
thought he was going ome to northern Luzon." 

So I am here in Hawaii, irtually an exile and prisoner, inspite of 
the "distinguished ·oreign isiror' status accorded us through a letter 
we rece · vcd rom President Ronald Reagan upon uur apparently long 
expected arrival at Hickam Air Force Base. 

"A Genuine and Heartfelt Reconciliation" 

What ever might be the opinion of the Aquino administration right 
now - the fac;t remains that Madame Aquino, in a Febmary 28, 1988 
United Press International wire report, admitted sending two of her 
relatives (Congressman Egmidio Tanjuatco, a cousin and House 
;-..,Iajority Flour Leader Francisco Sumulong, an uncle) to Honolulu to 
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A~DE MEMOIRE 
(Th~ Philippine Situatlun) 

In tll~ pa~t two years var.iuus newspapers and wir~ ~ervices ~ll t 

?h.il.ippines, the United States and around the world carried headlines 

arid news stur.ies indicating of what waE:i aud what would oecume of U:e 

?hilippines. Headlines like 'Reds to Overthrow RP Government .in 

1991?' (Manila Journal 8/15/37), 'AFP Losing Propaganda War to :-IPA' 

(ouslness World 10/5/87), '?hilippines on Verge of New Str-.ife I a;1d 

'Discord Underlies Philippine Truce' {Knigl1t-Ridder Service 11 /1 2/86), 

'Communist Rebellion is Growing in Philippine5, U.S. fleet chief says' 

{Corpus Christi Caller-Times 04/26/87), 'Shultz say5 Rebels Ready to 

Attack' (Philippine Star 06/20/87), 'Rebels Raid Sugar Mill" {Malaya 

08/16/87), 'Bomb Blast Rocks Cotabato City Hall and Big Manila Hotels' 

(The Independent 08/12/87), 'NFA Has own Navy, Airforce (The Inde­

pendent 08/21/87),'The US Military Bases Agreement must be Junked 

Immediately! {We Forum 07/14/87), 'Salonga says US bases retention 

proposal faces defeat in Senate' (Malaya 07/13 / 87), 'Soluns Press US 

Bases Demolition' (Midday 07/30/87), 'A Limit to Aquino's Honeymoon 1 

(The New York Times 03/13/87 ), 1 Suffocation in Sanctimony' (Los AWJ8-

les Tintes 03/17/87), 'Is Cory in Command' (The Sunday Times 

08/16/87), 'Aquino Effigy Burned' (The Philippine Daily Inguirer 

07/28/87), 'Labor Strikes Cripple Philippine Business ' and 'Policy of 

Avoidance mulled for RP debt' (Malaya 08/21/87), 'RP's Economic Plan 

Unrealistic' (Business Day 08/30/87), 'Biggest Nestle plaAt suspend 

operation' (Malaya 08/21/87), 1 Suyc:1r Planters postpone crop' (M;:;tnila 

Journal 08/12/87) have made it plain even- to the ordinary ?ilipinos to 

conclude that the Philippines to i$ plunging h~adlong tu disa::;ter. 



page 2 

Keein political observers of the Philippine situation both Filipino 

and foreign have come up with nothing but dismal assessments of the 

?hilippines ' fate. The com1nunists have sei~ed the political and 

~ilitary initiatives. The military is fractious, Mindanao secessio­

nists now agressively seek to dismember th@ Republic, r.i,ch landowners 

in Uegros and ?anay islands ir1 Central Philippines are stockpiling 

ar , s, o ff i cia"s and their cronies are raising tl1eir own private 

armies , c ri na i y and corruption on the rise, the public sector and 

pr iva t e n face recurring strikes, the political leadership is 

paralyzed , .. e b reacracy demoralized and the tenure of US bases is in 

jeopardy a nd so with the security of the United States antl all of 

Asia. :hese hav e a 1 been hastily brought about by an adminigtration 

so corru pt , i eff i cient, iadecisive a11d ineffective. 

'"'}e fig res ava · ab e clearly indicate that the economy is on the 

v erge of a v ir al co apse. The same is true antl with empirical 

evidence of the mi itary grossly divided and failing in its task to 

con ain e r·siny tide of communist insurgEtncy. 

Communist Insurgency 

The ccmmuni~t insuryency is raging at its fiercest yet, 1n all ~f 

its nineteen years. When President Marcos was kidnaped out of the 

~ountry in February 1986, the New People's Army's armed regular5, 

according to Philippine and U.S. official sources numbered only 

16,500. Niue months later, the figure drastit:ally rose to 23,500. 

And according to the Gen. Renato de Vllla, Chief of Staff of the Armed 

Force!:i of th~ Philip"ines, today is 57,000 and yrowiny. 
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In 197 2 when Martial ~aw was declared. by ?res itien t ivJarcos, the 

NPA~ were knocking at the gates of Manila. Today, NPA forces arR i n 

cu1<l arourid the metropolis. NPA assassinations and ambushes hav@ ' 

increased in number, frequency and audacity, and have become routine 

uccurrences in the city even in broad daylight. HPA guerillas now 

engage the Armed Forces of the Philippines in greater nuniben:i and f d r 

much longer durations, often on their own initiative. They are well 

armed · and supplied. They collect taxes from property owners and from 

some revenue-making Government offices that they have infiltrated, and 

above all they receive direct funding and arms shipments from abroad. 

The NPA held the military at a istandof:f in Bataan province, 

virtually isolated the Bicol sainland by blasting railway structures 

and sev~ral vital bridyes and about 1,500 armed partisan,:; all members 

of the Alex Bou~ayo Brigade now operate in Manila. At the same 

time, the communist have yained much political ground in tl1e villages, 

the media, the universities, the labor unions, the Church arid 

Government wh~re they have infiltrated sensitive offices. 

The CPP-NPA-NOF had earlier predicted a strategic stalemate (full 

military parity with Governmt:!nt forces) within two y~ars. The 

military has not disagreed with that estimate. But the timetable may 

have been advant:t!d with the announcement by Carolina Malay-Ocampo, 

spokesperson of the National Democratic Front that they are 

now setting up a provisional national revolutiouary government similar 

to the provisional regional revolutionary governments they !1ad set up 

earl.ii.:r in southern Philippines and in other parts of thf:! c.:ountry':s 

so-called liberated ar~as. 
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While the Communist illsurg@nte ar?. growing in strength , the 

Pliilippi r e military las remal.tied divided and ptiorly ~uppr)r\:ed by • r:,: 

current politica eadership. In one unforgettable statement, Mrs. 

Aquino once prou<lly poillted out that the N?A waa not against her 

Government, or1ly against the Armed Forces. She released the communists 

captured by the 1arcos Admiuistra t ion and initiated her <l lsast rous 

cease-fire and peace talks with the National Democratic Front without 

any consul ·ation and without prior notice to, the military, She 

pursued her initiative without enlisting its expertise. This policy 

virtually handcuffed the military, Military and police casualties 

soared to unpr~cedented heights. Thus to date the kill ratio of the 

Armed Forces of the ?hilippines versus New People's Army stood al 3:1 

in 1986 and about 3.5:1 in 1987 compared to an over-all kill ratio of 

only 1:2,9 from 1981 to 1985. Aqui110 even fomented public indignation 

against the memb~rs of the Armed Forces describing them as murderers 

and human rights violators when she publicly said that the mllitary 

killed her husband in 1983, even while the new trial of the accused -

ari unseen oc:curenc.:e made possible by the unprecedented ruliny of her 

Supreme Court junking the universally revered law on double jeopardy. 

011 the other hand, Mrs, Aquino was ambival~nt to acl on the well knuwn 

atrocities committed by the New People's Army wl~se titular head, Mr. 

Berr1abe Buscayno alias Commander Dante, sh~ still coddles todate. 

This infirm relationship with the military manifested itself in 

serious disord~r in the Armed Forcl::!s and the seven cuup d'~l:at sta9e<l 

against her government, the most serious of wltich was the 28 Augu~t 

coup led by Cul. Gregorio 11 Grinyo 11 Horiasan. 
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Stayflatiun ~nd EL:vnomlc Cu llcip:.,e 

The unaua t ed .increase in the prices of commodities has li~ewise 

been a bonanza to the Communist cause, as famili~s i=\lrea<ly i;n~ove­

rished by unemployment have grown weary in the struggle to cope with 

the weight of inflation, which grew 385 ?er cent in. 1986 over the 198.S 

l~ve . ~ h e peso has steadily deteriorated, so much so that the 

exchang~ rate today is ?22.30 to $1, from PlB.60 in 1985 and !?20.30 in 

1986. 7his has been accompanied by dwindling support for farmers and 

medium-scale inclu!itries, reversing a revered and long-standing policy 

by the past administration. Along with inflation, these factors have 

dragged per capita income down to $572 in 1986, from the 1985 lev~l of 

$1,400. 

Staynation and ruin are similarly ~vit.11::ml in the affairs and 

services of the government. Although revenue collection is reported 

by the government to have increa5ed by about 15.5% in 1986, the 

budgetary deficit in that year of P27.85 billion, was more than twice 

the ~ize of the deficit in 1985 (Pll.8 billion). Equally bewil<lering 

is the nearly total absence of physical accomplishments, despite the 

claim that some P41. 5 uillion, 67~ more th~n 1985, was t'tXpP.nc1Prl in 

1986 for the construciton of roads, bridges, ports and airports and 

for other capital uut;lays, Instead, some of the infrastructure 

assidously built during the Marcos Administration is in total 

disrepair, si:;,,me facilities have merely b@en renamed after "new 

heroes", dnd no construction that had been planned, funded or 

cc.,rnmenced before 1986 have beeri undertaken. 
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The variance between stated rever1ue arid '-'isibl e c1.c C':}lnµ1 i ~r 11n ~: :c. 11-.i s 

raised questions, -chiefly llte logical one about wbdl usl;!fu.l ends L d· r e 

ueen se, v ed by t he money spent for .items lhe yovernm8nt has cho~en not 

to identify. People may bl! asked to understand, of course, lh?t these 

invisible items will serve them somehow, at som~ time; but for t he 

moment it apparently serves the purpose of the Aquino administrat i on 

to leave them undefined and unexplained. In ~n ~tmosphere that i s not 

conduci v e to scrutiny anyway, one need not reach too vigorously far 

answers. 

A Study in Contrast 

It would be highly entertaining were it not for the very real 

danger that it has helped to create - a communist victory is closer 

today that it c_ould ever be in the past not merely because of the 

obvious lack of will in the political leadersl1ip to subdue the 

communist rebellion. It is also helped along by the failure of the 

Aquino government, despite much rhetoric and repeated promises, to 

provide the basic ~ervices that no society can do without. Tl1e country 

ls d~finitely ill. The institutions of democracy are in shambles. 

The Aquino government has _made no effort to meet the needs of a 

growing population for adequat~ gources of electric power, for orderly 

transport, for better nutrition, for more classrooms, for greater farm 

and industrial productivity, for less dependence on imported oil, ior 

an expanded housiug program, and !or more medical and rural health 

facilities and services. 
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In:;;tead, the Aquino yovernment has Liusit=d it.;:e .i. f ,-.ir l1 L n':}e 

gestures iu destroying and ur abusing Lhe vct.ri,.;ius .i..usli.l u i ~1J r1::; 1-il1l Cr: 

are the palpable and outstunding t.est.imonials of the Marcos year~ . 

'I'hey abolished the Batasan Pambansa, rewrote and fraudulently rat if .i"=d 

a new Constitution, dismissed judges and public servants, f.ir~d ~l: 

elected officials, clandistinely changed the electoral code and 

totally isolated the military establ1shment from public =espect . 

They also abu~ed and neglected the International Rice Res1:arch 

Institute - the ins t itution that is responsible in developing the 

high-yielding varie ies of rice, specific;ally the IR-8 also known as 

the "Miracle Rice " that enabled the Philippines to attain self-suf­

ficiency in ric;e in 1976 and a net exporter of the commodity in 1977. 

The same t hing happened to the South East Asian Fisheries 

Development Council facilities iu Tigbauan, Iloilo in central 

Philippines that propelled the country to greater heights in 

aquaculture. 

The uuiqut:! and only non-collateral and non-interest bearing 

livelihood financing and development program, known during the Marcos 

years as t:he Kilusang Kabuhayan at Kaunlaran (KKK), loosely translated 

as thH Movement for Livelihood and Development is now totally moribund 

and its benef ic iar ies are in a quandary as to whom to approad1 for 

hE:!lp, assistance and guidance. 

The Land Reform Program under Marc.;06 was not just the transfer of 

land from one farmer to another. It was part of an entire program of 
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.redistribut.ion of wealth and supported by instiLutions thd.t 'JJ.'✓ c •_ ,J 

both urban an<l rural poµulace the basic ne1:Js of rnc:Hl. 

~ducat.ional process. It indoctrinated the F.il..i.pino f..tri11er with 1 

vr.ide in his .intel l ectual, military, so<.:ial aHd ecot1omi (; heroe::,, Ti-u~ 

Marcos land reform succeeded .in producing a new upright race t 11at 

recognized t h e dignity oi- man and labor, Th~ Aquino ijtJ'/ernmenl tried 

to replace it with .its own and the result, landowner~~ threatened lo 

cut and burn their c:rops, farmers went to demonstrate against. lhe 

program .in front of Malacanan Palace last ZJ Jgn~Qry t~e7 oply to be 

massacred by its dreaded "Yellow Army". At the same time, the 

ill-thought off prognun did not receive the requh·ed support from the 

larded e bers of the Philippine congress. 

The Marcos adminiet=at.ion successfully transfo,.td government into 
I 

an effec t · v e instr ent of change. It developed if1ii, a responsive 

machinery for p b ic service, whose decision-making ~ocesse• allowed 

the ac:t i ve par · ic ipa t ioI! of the people. It laid do?4n ;he f oumla t ion 

for the peop e ' s contro ' over the conduct of their a.fr~·rs .. One of the 

many pi' ars was the in1;.titutionalization of a unique a• revolulio-

nary sys t em of barangay (village) democracy. It is a • stem of 

uemucracy which rostored pow~r d.irectly lo the p~ople tl t enabled 

them to actively partici~ate in ~eciRinn-mR~ing io~u~o l~l altect 

their ec:onoml<: and social lives. 

Thus, a wider participation of the Filipino people u national 

affairs and in the decision-mak.ing 

bar-angay, which was reviv£!d uy the 

pol i tic;al unit in the Phi 1 ippin~s. 

I 

proc;ess was ~,f fect->1 through the 

I 
Marco!:J admir;i~tratf-'~l as the basic 

The u~rangays ma~ up the base for 

i 

' 

! 
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the par t i c .i pa t i on o f the c i t i ~ e u r y .i n gov er nm en t d ( f ci i c s , ,•;rue n,~ t n 

the.ir collective vi ews were con:;;idered in th~ tor1nulGtti o r; of ndt.iuu -il 

~olicies, pldns a n d programs. 

The Ma rcos acim.inistration, in short, shared pol.iti r;.:3.l power wi U: 

some 291,333 e l ec t ed barangay officials in addition to t11e 180 elect~d 

memb~rs of par li a ment and around 16,000 elected local ;overnment 

officia s. Today nder the Aquino administraticn the.. 17olitical power 

is pres~rv eti r ch ess number consisting mostly of :he lane.led 

g~ntry and th e oligarchy. 

I 
Events of F~bruary 1986 

{ 
I 

I 

!he much ballyhooed " E SA rtevolution" or "?eopleiJ Power 
' ' \ 

rtevolution" was not actua l ya revolution, It was more accurately, a 

restoration the reinsta ement of the ol~ oligarchy th t Marcos in 

the course of hi~ "democratic revolution 11 wei~ acout to otally 

' 
dismantle when he was kidnaped to Hawaii on \orders of .\ bassador S. 

Boswt,r th and Madame C. Aquino. And t.hi!:1 was done after 1e Wi;\S 

proclaimed winner of the February 7, 1986 p~~sidential snap election 
' 

by a majority of 1,5 million votes by the un•y 

Philippine constitution - the Batasan Pamban a 

ment). 

hori:.eed by the 

i 
? re~ iden t Ferdinand Marcos was first ~ l~cted lJ a four yeaz· term 

i 
in 1965. He was reelected by a lanusl ide in .l. 969. / In 197 2 he 

! 
/ 

declared Martial Law not with the intention o·r pr6lo11ging himself .1n 

power but to save the country from the im111.ineril:,'threat of a cornmuni.st 
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takeover. He .instituted various reforms which were al:;o 9resenlr':'t.1 t o 

t:he people fur their rat.if .icat.ion. A~ suc h the peL· .iu.J u~ h ;'=' e !l i 'J "i -2 1,_, 

1981, tile ?h.ilippines exper.ienced the mosl nur.il>~r uf elc 1~loral ci '-' mo ­

cr-atic c->rocess~s, referenda and plebisc.it: P. <:;; a.rid electi u nb l lt a11 -:1 n ·,­

other period of its h.islory. 

In 1981 President Marcos presented himself once more· to the 

people. And again he won resoundingly against his presider1tial 

opponent. 

Meanwhile, prominent businessman and political figures during th~ 

pre-martial law days, like Benigno Aquino, Raul Manglapus, Jovita 

Salor1ga, Justiniano Montano, John Osmena, Ramon Jacinto, R~ul Olaguer, 

Steve Psinakis, and the Lopezes were mounting a massive destabiliza­

tion campaiyn ir1 the United States againsl the democratic government 

of Pre~ider1t Marcos which was very friendly to the United States. Many 

wondered why these destabi ization activit.ies had fl(Jurished int.he 

Uttited States when they were glariny violations of the U.S. Neutrality 

Act. 

The s mear campaign against the Marcos government peaked after the 

assasination uf Benigno Aquino in August 21, 1983, Demonstrations, 

bombings, labur strikes, and NFA attacks which were financed by monies 

coming from various groups in the United States failed however to 

totally aI1Cl !ully destabilize the Marcus Government. However, th~y 

succeeded in enlisting the American media to help them oust Marcos out 

uf Malacanan. So whttn the presidential snap election was called in 

February 7, 1986 - the result was alr·eady known that Marcos could 

orily win if he <.:heated. 
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But t:he Fillpino people knew better. 

resound.i11g mandate to lead the country till 19 9 1. 

then Chi e f of the Philippine Constabulary, G~ri. i.· i<.l e l Ha rnos s howed 

that the pr~sideut.ial ~m1p election of February 1986 wa.~ th!:! cl eane st 

and the most peaceful of all the election in the Phllipp~nes' 

electoral history. The report also ind..i.cated that more Marcos' par ty 

leaders were either killed, injured and kidnaped during the electi on 

was greater by 20% over than those of lh~ Aquino party . 

At the same time, the Commission on Election canvassed t he v otes 

and determined that Presic.lent Marcos was the wim1~r by a majorlty or 

1.5 million votes. Many then asked the que.stion,"If narcos really 

CC\~ated, how could he have cheated more than one mi ll ion Pil i p.inos? 

The KidnapJ?ing . ) 

The plot lo oust and kidnap Marcos " ·""" already in \ lace a n <l t h e 

c o nspiracy at work. First a coup d'etat wa~ staged lL Enrile, Ramos 

and Hona~an . !ht:n Cardinal Sin joinE:!d the ! ray. Amb ·sadur Stephen 
' ' Bo~worth sent a message to Malacanan sayihg that they ou l d not 
' ·, 

hegital;e to use the U.S. Marines against t)1e Marcc:>~ec A telex 

message from President Reagan said that Pri. iden t ·Ma /cos should 
\ I 

oryanize an i n terim government for the Filipinos to :~urk out a 
I , 
, I 

solution. But this was totally ignored by A1ibassadd' Soswor'th. 
I ; 

Meanwhile General Ted Allen, Chi~f of the JUSMAG a~~ar·ed .in Malacanan 
I 

saying that he represented the President of lhe Unf ted States and that 

h~ had orcli:1·s to take Marcos out of the PaJ21ce bec.1.use it was about to 

fall into the ham.ls of the communists. Geil , Allen al!'.>o ordered t he 

lawJin9s of iJ.S. Marines on board U.S. heiH;opters iu Malacanan. 
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7 These marines disarmed and took inlo custody 00 

of the ?residential Security Command. Laler 011, lo µrev'=11t blcocisi1~<.1. 

President :vletrco5 aucl hl~ tarnily ayre~<l tu be td.keu Lo Lh!:!.ir borne 

province of Ilocos Norte. :Out again they were mlsle<l by Ambassador 

Bosworth, General Allen and Maj or Gen. W i 11 lams and ins t~;;.t.i 1t1~.re 

$pirited out of lhe country agdinst their will. 

Re<.:en stal~ments of Madame Aquino hav~ cun!irmf.:d the claim of 

?resident Marcos that he was kidnapped to Hawaii. Madame Aquino 

pui:>lic:ly admi · te<l ' n a t elevision program "Magtanung sa Pangulo" thal 

she wa~ actually he ped by the United States government th1·ough 

Ambasgador Bosworth .1n kiclnapiny President Marcoo, Thus this kidnap..i.ng 

of the Presider1t of an independent state with the help of foreign 

cou11try has becom~ unprecedented in contemporary world history. 

The kidnaping of Marcos led to the installation of Mrs, Aquino as 

President uf the Philippines. It also opened the avenue for the 

various vicious campaigns directed by Aquino's ''de facto" government 

again:;:;l th~ Ma.ceases, th~ir friends and relatives and the members of 

t:he Arme d Fot"ces of the Philippines whom lhe Aquino administration 

considered loyal to the kidnaped presi<lent. 

A great number of the members of lhe Arm~d Forces of the 

Philippines were tortured by lhe Aquino yovernmerit. Cases•were filed 

against the Marcoses and their friends. Their pt"operties up to thi!:i 

<l;;ty cunf.iscated or sequ~stered without due prucess. 
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At the ~ame t.ime, ~ome faur million Fil ~p.iuos in Mety 19 8 6 ,_. i.,;i:,,.i 

a p~\:it.ion for the return and restoration of President Mi'lrcos to th e: 

? hilippine presidency. Cup.ies of this petition wf::.1:e ~enl to the 

members of the U.S. Congress hoping that action might be initia t ';!d t o 

correct a grave error in American intervention. 

The Allegation of Misuse of Public Funds 

Multiplicity of cases filed against the kidnaped President is the 

order of the day. But none todate were decided in favor of the Aquino 

government. In fact both the U.S. and the Japanese governments have 

cleared President Marcos of charges of misuse of funds. 

The U.S. General Acc;uuntinl} Office ( GAO) has r.:ertifi~d to the 

proper utilization of all of the U.S. assistance to tt1e Philippines. 

The GAO which conducts invest i gation:s for the U.S. Congress, exam..itied 

all relevant documents and made ocular inspectio ns of projects 

financeu by U .S. aid arid spec;ial project f'unds made a r~port in May 

1986 which said in part: " In the Philippines, we reviewed selected 

files and records provided by the AID and, to a limited extent, by the 

Government of the ?hilippines ( GOP); visited ESF project sites; and 

obtained indep~ndent cost analysis of selected ESF construction 

activities which showed the arnounts paid for the facilities were 

reasonable , 

11 We reviewed several allegation!:; concerning misuse of U.S. 

assistance. None of these could bl! substantiated. We also reviewed 

duc.;ument~ ex-l?rosident Ferdinand Marcos and others had brought with 



...:..:.. . ...:. . 

phem to the United States . 

page 14 

.:i.ssistanct!." 

The Jctp~nese yo vernmenl's National Tax i3oar;d a1Llo invesliyo.Lt!.J 

allegations that President Marcos received pay-off monies from 
. 

Japanes~ corporations doing business in the Philip!Jines anc.l their 

finding cone lus .i v e - that "they have found no incriminating ev ider: c e 

tl1~t President Marcos had received pay-offs from Japanese corporations 

and that they considered lhe case closed." 

In addition, the U.S. Court of Appeals of the Ninth Circuit handed 

down a ruling to the effect that Presider1t Marcos was covered by the 

act of stale doc.:trine and therefore the public acts preformed by him 

could only be tried in the Philippines. Mox-eover, they ruled that 

no dirett evidence c.:uuld be obtained of stealing public money, 

exacting money or commissions. 

Earlier, in Auyust 1985, an impeachment resolution was filed on 

the same bas:..~ as these allegations. After full hearing and debate in 

lhe Committee 011 Justice of the Parlia1nent a.nu on the floor of the 

?arlia.me,1t in which 68 opposition members actively participated, 

Resolution 645 of Parliament was passed dec;laring President Marcos 

.innocent and absolved of all charges, This resolution was later 
. 

appealed to the Philippine Supreme Court: which similarly denied the 

appeal. 
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Harra~:;;rnents and Co11finern~nt 

On s ~ v Pr ,-;i l o c c.: as ion 8 re I! res en l d ti v es of the t\·1 o o £ f .ice:.; 1• • C ' ll t ,..., 

American government namely the Departments o( Ju:;;t.ice and Slate, as 

well c:ts Immigration and Naturalization Services visiteu 

President Marcos. One of l:hose occasion was on July 6, 1987 to convey 

a message frum lhe Presi<lent of the Unit~d State!:j aucl the Sect"~tary uf 

State. These representatives read to President Marcos the curt and 

blunt statements contained in the "Talking ?oints". President Marc<J8 

was further threatened with arrest and detention if they should 

believe that he was committing any acts prohibited by these "talking 

points " . They also .informed President Marcos that au additional 

condition on his parole has been imposed by the President of the 

United States forbidding President Marcos to leav~ the island of Oahu, 

Hawaii without the written permission of th~ Di~trict Director uf the 

!NS. These conditions are all contrary to the contents of the letters 

~enl a l~gedly by President Reagan and Secr~tary Sshultz upon 

?resident ~arcos ' arrival at Hickam Air Base in February 25, 1986 

which c;onsiu~reu him as the guest of the ?resident uf the United 

States. 

The above does nut also conform with answer to the letter of Dr. 

Rolando Atiga to the President of the United States requesting that 

assistan<.:e be given to Presi<lent Marcos for his return lo the 

Philippines. The letter dated 6 January 1987, from John Finney, Jr., 

Acting Director of ll1e Office of Philippine Affairs, Bureau of Ea~l 

Asian and Pacific Affairs, stated t:hat "President Reagan invited Mr. 

Marcos, hl~ family and close associate~ to come to the United Statess 
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drtd depart as they !:)leased.'' 
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they wou lcl sub~H~quen t. l 'j f r e ~ L o ,: 1 1 •• <:! r 

Tle Cury Cunstilulion and Jar1uc:1ry 1~87 ?l~li.i~·;ite 

While President Marcos languished as a virtual prison~r in the 

island of Oahu, Madame Corazon Aquino aud her cohorts <;ont.inued with 

their systematic destruction of the various Filipino institutions of 
<lemocracy. 

t"'adar:ie Aquino ~elected anu appointed the member!:i uf a Cc.ms ti tu-

t ional Commission tasked with the drafting of a new constitution 

inlendecl to replaced the properly ratified constitution of 1973. Thi9 

Commission drafted a constitution that contained the nuclear free 

provision that virtually sealed the fate of the U.S. bc:1s~s in the 

Philippines whi eat same time legalizing the communist movement in 

the country. 

Th e rigging of the Constitution making pro<=~S8 result~d in the 

ratific..:at·on of an unread, undiscussed and flawed Constitution, The 

Commission on Election was deluged with telegrams and petitions 

denourcing t he fraudulent conduct of the plebisite by th~ Aquino 

yovernmen t. Reports indicated that government funds amounting to 

billions of pesos were used to bribe the country's electorate. In . 
Region I members of the Marcos party complained that some 4 billion 

pesos in puulic works funds were released for purposes other than 

c..:unstruction of public works projects. 
I 
I 

I 

l 
\ 
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7he :-l ay 11, 1987 Coogres~.i o r1a1 21': c t.;. un s 

The Aquino g overnraerit t hen followed the plebi~i t e pr <Jc e s~ •,vi.L r t 

the electi o ri s fot· c ongres!> l unal and seuatur.ial seat:;;. Il ,·rns ltiyr,ily 

touled as the next big step in the country's return to democratic 

processes. What happened was just the exact opposite. The May 11 

e l ection s became the most dishonest and the most fraudulent ele c toral 

exercise since the c o untry became independent. Through the use of 

moc.lern tec h nology s uch as the computer, systematic cheating was 

achieved b y h e Aquino goverr1ment. Votes were added to administration 

candidates b y the millions . The administration tool in committing 

t his scanda l o u s method was the NAMFREL (National Movement for Free 

Elections ) . And perhaps adding insult to injury, the NAMFREL even 

adn1it t ~d t hat the adminis t ration candidates diu indeed (;heat. But the 

pro t es t s f r om · h e defea t ed opposition candida t es fell on d•eaf ears. 

The Janu ary 21, 1988 Local llec t ions 

Having gained con t rol of Congress despite the rigged elections, 

the Aqu ino government proceed~d to the holding of local elect l ons 

i n order to gain full and solid political control of the entire 
I 

<.:ountry . What resulted was a more massive duplication of wha~ happened 

earlier in all t he other political exercises under her adJnin l stration, 

Voles were bought and oppo~ilior1 candidate~ were t~rrorized and 

eliminated, And for the first time in the history of Philippine 

elections, more canuida'les than followers lost their lives. Th~ local 

elections also revealed one single significant aspect. Aquino was not 
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as popular as she was perce.ive<.l to be. In cr·uc i.al ~nd mdj (;t· dre cl s '...J r 

t.:he country even with ht-./r full back.iny n.ml SUlJ·port, her candi rldt~•-; 

lost. 

NEGOTIATIONS FOR MARCOS' RETURN 

Ir1 December of 1987 and January of 1988, fresh overtures for 

the return of President Marcos to the Philippines were made by two 

close relatives of Madame Aquino. The two envoys met with ?resident 

Marcos in two separate occasions in Honolulu. In both meetings, 

?resident Marcos expressed his willingness to return home and be able 

to J1elp save the country from its twin prublems of communist 

insurgency and economic collapse. Beyond that first stage, the Aquino 

yovernmerit has dilly dall.:ed in its de<.:ision imposing seemingly 

impossible conditions for President Marcos return. Meantime, the 

former Presi<lt:ml has not changed his origiual position that he is 

willing to help in whatever capacity he can to save lhe country. 

I:1 the Philippines also, the clamor for his return has grown 

stronger. More and more people high and low have come out in the open 

and have exprE:!ssed Hadr desire for his immetliale relurn. 




